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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE Uﬂi@ED STATES OF AMBRICA
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK.

- - 3

L 8

Southern Distriect of New Yérk, ss: The grand
Jurors for the United States of .America Guly empaneled and
sworn in the District Court of the United States for that
district, upon their oaths present:

That et all times from June 27, 1919,%0 the
time of the filing of this indictment, the Black Star Line,
Inc., wes a corporation organized and existing under and
by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware with an office
in the City of New York and Borough of lianhattan, that the
éapital stock of szid corporation at the beginning was
$9500,000 divided into 100,000 shares of the par value of 5
each and that on December 22, 1919, the capital stock of
said corporation wae increased to $10,000,000 divided into
2,000,000 shares of the par value of $5 each;

That on, tc wit, the dates specified in the last
paragraphs of the counts of this indictment, at the Southern
District of New York and within the jurisd;ction of this Court,
L.ARCUS GARVEY, ELIE GARCIA, GEORGE TOBIAEZ/ORLAEDO . THOLPSON,
named as defendants herein and hereinafter referred to as the
defendants, hed theretofore devised = scheme and artifice
to defraud Louis Schench, J. Simon Scott, T. S. Smith, lirs.

Re. Stewart and Addie Still, and divers other persons whos:
names are to the grand jurors unknown ( a class of persons
residing within the United States =nd not susceptible by

rezson of their great number and lack of informetion on the part
of the grand jurors of being named herein, but comprising

any end all persons - whom the defendants could induce to pur=

chase stock of the Black Star Line, Inc., szid persons being

hereinafter referred to as the victims) of their money and



property in and by inducing by fraudulent representations,
pretenses and promises and by deceptive artifices and de=-
vices said victims to part with their money and property
in the purchese of shares of the capitel stock of the said
Black Ctar Line Inc.; said scheme and artifice being more
particularly set forth as follows:

It wes intended by said defendants as a parﬁ of

said scheme and artifice that one or more ships should be

secured, and an excursion boat should be purchased; that said

ships and said excursion boat should be operated by said
corporation and thet, in substahce, it should te falsely

end fraudulently represented, pretended and promised, in
literature circulated by mail and direct by representatives
of said corporation, that the operations of said ships and
said excursion boet were the visible evidence of the pros-
perity and success of said corporation; when, in truth and
in fact, said ships and said excursion boat, as said defend-
ents then and there well knew, were and at all times would
be, operated at a 1ossi}being the intent and purpose of

saicd defendants in so representing, pretending and promising
that said victims should be deceived into believing that the
stock of the said corporation was and would be worth the
price at which it was being sold and offered for sale;

It was intended by said defendants as a furthqf
part of said scheme and artifice that it should be repre-
sented, pretended and promised that a steamship larger than
any which they, the szid defendants, had theretofore in-
tended to secure and to be known as the "Phyllis Wheatley"
should be taken over by the said corporation after inspec-
tion, and that such steamship should sail for Africa with

passengers and freight; when, in truth and in fzct, no such
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steamship existed, it being the intent and purpose of said
defendants in so representing, pretending and promising,

to secure money and property from said victims for freight
and passage toc Africa and to deceive said victims into be-
lieving that the stock of said corporation was and would be
worth the price at which it was being sold and offered for
sale;

It was intended by said defendants as a further
part of said scheme and artifice that a financial state-
ment should be prepared and should be spread upon the minutes
of said corporation, that said financial statement should
be false and fraudulent in that it should be made to appear
that said corporation had an organization expense of $289,066.27
when, in truth and in fact, as said defendants then and there
well knew, no such sum had been so spent; and in order that
such statement should create a belief that a great corporation
had been built up, and should be effective in stimulating stock
sales and should deceive said victims and the public generally,
it was intended further by said defendants that it, the said
false and fraudulent financial statement, should be copied into
and circulated by "The Negro World", a newspaper controlled by
said defendants;

It was intended by said defendants as a further
part of said scheme and artifice, to sell, offer for sale and
cause to be sold and offered for sale to said victims shares
of the capital stock of the said Black Star Line, Inc., ;nd
for the pnurpose of inducing the said victims to part with
their money and property in the purchase of said stock so
intended to be sold and offered for sale, the said defend-

(in the remainder of this paragraph referred to as "we" or "ou 1)
antg,/ in substance, intended falsely and fraudulently

to represent, pretend and promise to said victims and each

y

of them that the Black Star Line afforded a grand opportunity

to every Negro to insure himself against misfortune; that

<%



there would be a monster demonstration at adison Square
Garden October 30, 1919, to celebrate the launching of the
Black Star Line steamship, S.S."Frederick Douglasd:; that the
S.5. "Frederick Douglass", the first ship of the Black
Star Line, had been launched on the 3lst dey of October, 1919,
end made history for the Negro; that three ships were afloat
and that we must float one every three months until we build
up a great merchant marine, second tomwne; that amidst great
difficulties we are eble to bring into real existence & cor-
poration that now holds a high place among the great business
institutions of the day; that we have placed the Race 100
per cent among the great commercial institutions of the world;
that we now have under our control three ships and we are
making & desperate effort to acquire the greatest ship of all,
and one that is to convey te Africa our workmen and materials
for the building up of the great Republic of Liberis for the
Race; that the Black Star Line S.S. Corporation has startled
the world; that we are making special efforts to add ships
of large tonnage to the ships now under and controlled by
this concern; that the proceeds of the dollar drive will be
used to donate our mother ship, all necessary equipment and
make it specially and conveniently fitted for the African
trade; thet all our time, all our energy, all our ability,
will be centered in building up of Africe as the greates}
nation in the world; that between these three agencies,
The African Redemption Fund, the Black Star Line S.S. Cor-
poraticn and the loaning to the Universal Negro Improvement
(referring to the victime)
Association's Construction Loan, yocuw/will enable us to cement
the finances of our race 2s to make it possible for us
through this organization not only to build a nation, but to
bind ourselves as one industrial power among the other
races and nations of the world, and that whatever might
have been the errors of the past, the present administration

il



of the Black Star Line is composed of trained business men
and specialty service help, unquestionably equal to their
responsible tasks;

And each of the aforesaid reﬁfesentations,
pretenses and promises, as said defendants, and each of
them then and there well knew, was and would be false and
fraudulent,and the said defendants, in making them, intend-
ed thereby to deceive and defrsud seid victims by induc-
ing them to part with their money and property in the
purchase of said stock as aforesaid;

And it was a further vart of said scheme and
artifice that the said defendants should each appropriate
and convert to his own use in the form or guise of salary,
drawing account, expenses, commissions and profits, a part
of the money and property which would be paid by said vic-
tims in the purchase of said stock of the said Black otar
Line, Inc. as aforesaid; but the exact form or guise in which
each said defendant intended thus to convert and appropriate
to his own use such part of said money and property and the
exact amount thereof that each said defendant intended thus
to appropriate and convert, is to the grand jurors unknown;

And said defendants so having devised and intend-
ing to devise the aforesaid scheme &nd artifice, did, on the
2lst day of December, 1920, at the Southern District of New
York and within the jurisdiction of this Court, for the
purpose of executing said scheme and artifice znd attempting
s0 to do, unlawfully, knowingly and Wwilfully place and
ceuse to be placed in a Post Cffice of the United States,
that is to say, the Post Office in the City and County of
New York, in the Southern District of lew York, to be sent
and delivered by the Post Office establishment of the
United States to the addressee thereof, a certain letter
enclosed in a post-paid envelope adiressed to

"Louis Schench,
1512 0,8t. North
Washington,D.C.";
against the peace of thq United States and their dignity
iy



and contrary to the form of the statute of the United

States in such case made and provided. (§ 218 B.8.C.C.)

SECOND_COUNT.

And the grand jurors aforesaid on their.oaths
aforesaid do hereby reaffirm, reallege and reincorporate
as if herein set forth in full all the allegations of the
first count of this indictment, except those allegations
contained in the last paragraph thereof;

And the grand jurors aforesaid do further pre=-
sent that on the 27th day of lay, 1921, at the Southern
Distriect of New York and withiﬁ the jurisdiction of this
Court, the defendants sc having devised and intending to
devise the aforesaid scheme and artifice and for the pur-
pose of executing said scheme anc artifice and attempting
80 to do, did unlawfully, knowingly and ~ Wilfully place
and cause to be placed in a Post Office of the United
States, that is to say, the Post Office in the City and
County of New York, in the Southern District of New York,
in College Station thereof, to be sent and delivered by‘
the Post Office establishment of the United States to the
addressee thereof, a certain letter enclosed in a post=-
paid envelope addressed to

"lir. G. Simon Scott,

69 Greenwich Ave.,

Stamford, Conn.%; ~
against the peace of the United States and their dignity
and contrary to the foxm of the statute of the United

States in such case made and provided. (§ 215 U.S.C.C.)

THIRD COQUNT.

And the grand jurors aforesaid on their oaths
aforesaid do hereby reaffirm, reallege and reincorporate
as if herein set forth in full a2ll the allegations of the
first count of this indictment, except those allegations

contained in the last paragraph thereof;

il



And the grand jurors aforesaid do further

present that on the 21st day of December, 1920, at the
Southern District of New York end within the jurisdiction
of this Court, the defendants so0 having devised and intend-
ing to devise the aforesaid scheme and artifice and for
the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice and attempt=-
ing so to dd, did unlawfully, knowingly and wilfully
place and cause to be placed in a Post Cffice of the United
Statee, that is to say, the Post Office in the City and
County of New York, in the Southern Disirict of New York, in
College Station thereof, to be sent and delivered by the
Post Office establishment of the United States to the address-
ee thereof, a certain letter enclosed in a post-paid
envelope addressed to

"T. S. Smith

726 N. Senate Ave.,

Indienapolis, Indizna.";
against the peace of the United States and their dignity
anéd contrary to the form of the statute of the United States

in such case made and provided. (§ 215 U.S.C.C.)

FOURTH COUNT.

And the grand jurors aforesaid on their oaths
aforesaid do hereby reaffirm, reallege and reincorporate
as if herein set forth in full all the allegations of the
first count of this indictment, except those allegations ™
contained in the last paragraph thereof;

And the grand jurors aforesaid do further pre-
sent that on the 21st day of December, 1920, at the Southern
District of New York and within the jurisdiction of this
court, the defendants so having devised and intending to de-
vise the aforesaid scheme and artifice and for the purpose
of executing said scheme and artifice and attempting so to
do, did unlawfully, knowingly and . wilfully - place and
cause to be placed in a Post Office of the United States,
that is to say, the Post Office in the City and County of

New York, in the Southern District of New York, to be
N ¥



sent and delivered by the Post Office establishment of
the United States to the addressee thereof, a certain
letter enclosed in a post-paid envelope addressed to
"liirs. R. Stewart,
2138 liaster St.,
Philao ’ Pao " ;
against the peace of the United States and their dignity
and contrary to the form of the statute of the United

States in such case made and provided. (§ 215 U.8.C.C.)

FIFTH COUNT.

And the grand jurors aforesaid on their oaths
aforesaid do hereby reaffirm, réallege and reincorporate
as if herein set forth in full all the allegations of the
first count of this indictment, except those allegations
contained in the last paragraph thereof;

And the grand jurors aforesaid do further pre-
sent that on the 218t day of Deceﬁber, 1920, at the Southern
District of New York and within the jJurisdiction of this
Court, the defendants so having devised and intending to de-
vise the aforesaid scheme and artifice and for the purpose
of executing said scheme and artifice and attempting so to
do, did unlawfully, knowingly and . wilfully nlace and
cause to be placed in a Post Office of the United States,
that is to say, the Post Office in the City and County of
New York, in the Southern District of New York, to be
sent and delivered by the Post Office establishment of tﬁb
United States to the addressee thereof, a certain letter
enclosed in a post-paid envelope addressed to

"Annie Still,

2903 Annin St.,

Phila., Pa.";
against the peace of the United States and their dignity and
contrary to the form of the statute of the United States in

such case made and provided. (§ 215 U.S.C.C.)

-8-



SIXTH COUNT.

And the grand jurors aforesaid on their oaths
aforesaid do pereby reaffirm, reallege and reincorporate
as if herein set forth in full all the allegations of the
first count of this indictment, except those allegations
contained in the last paragraph thereof:

And the grand jurors aforesaid do further pre-
sent that on the 24th day of May, 1921, at the Southern
District of New York and within the jurisdiction of this
Court, the defendants so having devised and intending to
devise the aforesaid scheme and artifice and for the pur-
pose of executing said scheme and artifice and attempting
s0 to do, did unlawfully, knowingly andi Wilfully - place
and cause to be placed in a Post Office of the United
States, that is to say, the Post Office in the City and
County of New York, in the Southern District of New York,
to be sent and delivered by the Post Office establishment
of the United States to the addressee thereof, a certain
letter enclosed in a post-paid envelope addressed to

"ir. Edgar Sayers,

55 Broad St.,

Georgetown,

Demerara, British Guiana.";
against the peace of the United States and their dignity
and contrary to the form of the statute of the ﬁnited

States in such case made and provided. (§ 215 U.s.C.C.) _

SEVENTH COUNT.

And the grand jurors aforesaid on their oaths
aforesaid do hereby reaffirm, reallege and reincorporate
as if herein set forth in full all the allegations of the
first count of this indictment, except those allegations

contained in the last paragraph thereof;



And the grand jurors aforesaid do further present
that on the 25th day of May, 1921, at the Southern District
of New York and within the jurisdiction of this Court, the
defendants so having devised and intending to devise the
aforesaid scheme and artifice and for the purpose of exe-
cuting said scheme and artifice and attempting so to do,

did unlawfully, knowingly and . Wilfully - place and cause
to be placed in a Post Office of the United‘States, that
is to say, the Post Office in the City and County of New
York, in the Southern District of New York, in Grand Central
Station thereof, to be sent end delivered by the Post Office
establishment of the United States to the addressee thereof,
a certain letter enclosed in a post-paid envelope addressed
to
"Mre. Fitz C. Herbert Parris,
Georgetown, Demerarsa,
B. Guiana.";
against the peace of the United States and their dignity
and contrary to the form of the statute of the United States
in such case made and provided. (§ 215 U.S.C.C.)

EIGHTE COUNT.,

And the grand jurors aforesaid on their oaths
aforesaid do hereby reaffirm, reallege and reincorporate
as if herein set forth in full all the allegations of the
first count of this indictment, except those allegationi
contained in the last paragraph thereof;

And the grand jurors aforesaid do further pre-
sent that said defendants, L ARCUS GARVEY, ELIE GARCIA,
GEORGE TOBIAS, ORLANDO 1f. THOMPSON, continuously through-
out the period of time from June 27, 1919, up to the date
of the filing of this indictment, at the Borough of Manhattan,
City, County, State and Southern District of New York and
within the jurisdiction of this Court, did unlawfully,
wilfully, knowingly and feloniously conspire, combine, con-
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federate and agree together and with divers other persons
to said grand jurors unknown, to commit divers offenses
against the United States, to wit, the divers offenses
charged against the said defendants in the divers counts
of this indictment preceding this count and made offenses
by Section 215 of the Penal Laws of the United States; and
that said defendants did thereafter do divers acts to effect
the object of said unlawful and wilful - conspiracy, to
wit, not only the several acts of placing letters, circular
letters, advertisements and publications in the Post
Office of the United States in the City, County, State and
Southern District of New York, aforesaid described in said
several preceding counts, but numerous acts of preparing
said letters, circular letters, advertisements and publica-
tions for mailing; of making the false and fraudulent repre-
sentations, pretenses and promises in the first count of this
indictment described and obtaining by means thereof the noney
and property of persons belonging to the class of persons
in said first count mentioned as well as certain other overt
acts now here specified: that is to say:

OVERT ACTS.

In furtherance of said conspiracy and to effect
the object thereof, the defendants, IIARCUS GARVEY, ELIE
GARCIA, GEORGE TOBIAS, ORLANDO if. THOMPSON, in the Boroug?
of lianhattan, City, County, State and Southern District of
New York, did,on the 1lth day of September, 1919, hold a
meeting of the board of directors of the Black Star Line, Inc.,
at 120 West 138th Street, New York, New York:;

And further to effect the object of said con-
spiracy and pursuant thereto, the defendants, IARCUS GARVEY,
ELIE GARCIA, GEORGE TOBIAS, ORLANDO M. THOMPSON, in the
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Borough of Manhattan, City, County, State and Southern
District of New York, did,-on the 22nd day of December, 1919,
hold a meeting of the stockholders of the Black Star Line,
Inc., at Liberty Hall, 120 West 138th Street, New York,

New York;

And further to effect the object of said con-
spiracy and pursuant thereto, the defendants, LARCUS GARVEY,
ELIE GARCIA, GEORGE TOBIAS, ORLANDO M. THOMPSON, in the
Borough of lfanhattan, City, County, State and Southern
District of New York, did, on the 10th day of February,
1921, deposit and cause to be'deposited in a Post Office
of the United States, that is to say, the Post Office in the
City of New York, in the College Station thereof, to be
sent and delivered to the Post Office establishment of the
United States to the addressee thereof, a certain letter
enclosed inra post-paid envelope addressed to

"Iir. Charles Cornwall,

Port Simon P.O.

Costa Rica, Panama';
against the peace of the United States and their dignity and
contrary to the form of the statute of the United States in
such case made and provided; (§ 215 U.S.C.C.).

And further to effect the object of said cone-
spiracy and pursuant thereto, the defendants, MARCUS GARVEY,
ELIE GARCIA, GEOURGE TOBIAS, ORLANDO I. THOMPSON, in the _
Borough of llanhattan, City, County,8tate and Southern
District of New York, did, on the 2nd day of June, 1921,
vlace and cause to be placed in a Post Office of the United
States, that is to say, the Post Office in the City of New
York, in the Grand Central Station thereof, to be sent and
delivered by the Post Office establishment of the United
States to the addressee thereof, a certain letter enclosed
in a post-paid envelope, addressed to

"ir. David Fipps
Pt. Simon
Costa Rica, C.A.%;

against the peace of the United States and their dignity



and contrary to the form of the statute of the United

States in such case made and provided. (§ 215 U.S.C.C.)
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK,
NEW YORK, NEW YORK.

UNITED STATES

Vs, s DEMURRER.
MARCUS GARVEY, 33
ELIE GARCIA, and 33
GEORGE TOBIAS ol

Now come the Defendants, Marcus Garvey, Elie
Garcia and Georga Tobies, by their attorneys, william C.
Matthews and James B. MeLendon, and say that the indiete
ments herein and the matters and things therein set forth,
| &re, as therein set forth and alleged, not sufficient in
law to compel them to answer thereto, and they therefore
| demur to said indictment, as a whole, and demur to each
 and every of the eight (8) sepasrate counts thereof,

. 8everally, without specifically repeating their objections
| to each of said counts, by special and separate reference
thereto, on the following grounds and for the following

' reasons: .
(1)
That the indictment does not, nor does any counﬁ‘
charge or aver any offense against the United States.
(11)
| That each and every count is insufficient, in that
they do not, nor does any of them, aver the facts constitut-

ing a scheme to defraud.



Page 2e

(I11)

That each and every count therecf is insufficient for

repugnancy, uncertainty, ambiguity and evasiveness.
(IV)

That each and every count is insufficient for want of
distinet and adequate specifications of the particulars
wherein the several representations, called in the count
"false representations" were false.

(V)

That the said indictment and each and every count
thereof is duplicitious and is not specific enough, is
repugnant and too vegue, indefinite, ambiguous and uncerw-
tain to chamge any facts sufficient in law to constitute
any crime or offense, or to fully inform the defendante of

the charge against them, or to make the same clear to the
common understanding.
(V1)

That in the 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th and 7th counts of
the indietment the defendants are asked to supply the facts
from some other count namely,= the first count, upon which
the Govermnment relies and to which the defendantes are asked
to meke answer. The indictment is thereby robbed of the
clearness and preciseness to which the defendants are en-
titled and which the rules of eriminal procedure reguire.

(ViI)

That the said indictment, in the eighth count thereof,
does not set forth with the definiteness, certainty and
preciseness required by the rules of criminal procedure any
well-defined conspiracy or illegal confederstion aginst the
United States for which the defendants may be legelly held

to answer.
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(VIII)
That in the eighth count of the indictment too great
a burden is placed upon the defendants, in that they are
asked to supply all of the facts from some other portiomn of
the indictment, namely, the first count upon which the Gove
ernment relies and to which the defendants are asked to make
answer. The eighth count is therefore vague and indefinite
and of itself too uncertesin toc charge any facts sufficient
in law to constitute any crime or offense against the United
States or to fully inform the defendants of the charge
ageinst them, or to make the same clear to the common under-
stending.
(IX)
That the seid indictment, in the eighth count thereof,
does not set forth clearly and distinctly what overt acts
are chargeable to each defendant, nor does it set forth ﬁhat

acts upon which the Governmment intends to rely.

Now comes William C. Matthews and James B. McILendon,
attorneys for the above-named defendante, and say that they
believe there is good ground for sasid demurrer and the same

is not intended for delay.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURD
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF N. Y.

escscesseccesscscessccscscscccccsccscck
ﬁNITED STATES | :

-againste :
MARCUS GARVEY, ELIE GARCIA, GEORGE

TOBIAS and ORLANDO M. THOMPSON,
Defendants :

..0Q.C.....‘...'.'.'....‘.......Q.‘.'x

I, CORNELIUS W. McDOUGALD, attorney of re=-
cord for one of the dofendaﬁta and the petitiomer herein,
do hereby certify that the defendant, MARCUS GARVEY, has
fully stated to me the facts contained in his Moving Af-
fidavit herein to disqualify HONORABLE JULIAN W. MACK as
Trial Judge in the above-entitled case; and aftér read-
ing the affidavit of Marcus Garvey, and after having con-
sidered the facts therein contained, I do hereby certify,
as his counsel of record, that such affidevit and applica=-
tion are made in good faith.

Dated, New Yoék, Msy 15, 1923,

WQ ok
CORNELIUS W. MeDOUG N
Attorney of ‘Record for MARCUS

GARVEY, the Applicant and De-
fendant herein,

Office & P. O. Address,

206 Broadway,

Borough of Manhattan,

City of New York.



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF N. Y.

...0’.0'..‘.0.........l.'....‘.........x

UNITED STATES :
=againste : NO g ICE
0
MARCUS GARVEY, ELIE GARCIA, GEORGE t: MOTION

TOBIAS and ORLANDO M. THOMPSON,
' Defendants

....0’................0."....‘.......x

SIR

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that a motion will be
made in Room 235 of the above~entitled Court on the
léth day of May, 1923, at 10 A. M., or a soon thereafter
as counsel eaﬁ be heard, for the disqualification of
HONORABLE JULIAN W. MACK to sit as Trial Judge in the
above-entitled case.

Yours, &e,

CORNELIUS W. MecDOUGALD,
Attorney for Defendant,
MARCUS GARVEY,

Office & P. 0. Address,
206 Broadway,

Borough of Manhattan,
City of New York,

To:

HONORABLE WILLIAM HAYWOOD, &
U. S. Attorney,

Po 0.' Building.

New York City.



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF N. Y.
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UNITED STATES H
-against- :

MARCUS GARVEY, ELIE GARCIA, GEORGE TO=-
BIAS end ORLANDO M. THOMPSON,

Defendants
H
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PR B % g S

THE PETITION OF MARCUS GARVEY TO
HONORABLE JULIAN W, MACK RESPECT=-
FULLY REQUESTING HIS RETIREMENT
AS TRIAL JUDGE IN THE ABOVE ENw
TITLED CASE.

’

STATE OF NEW YORK )
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK ;88.

MARCUS GARVEY, being duly sworn, deposes and
says: That he is one of the defendants in the above-em-
titled case, which is an indictment found by the Grand Jury
of the Federal Court in and for the Southern Distriet of
New York, charginga violation of Section 215 U. 8. c. c.,
set for trial May 16, 1923, with Honorable Jnlia.n W. liack
designated as Trial Judge. :

Petitioner ‘;erily. believes that Your Honor
is disqualified from sitting in the trial of the sbove
case because of Your Honor's membership in and affiliation
with the National Association for the Advancement of Colored
People, whieh, through its responsinle officials, has openly
end viciously attacked not only the work of the petitioner
in his several business ventures, but which has attacked i
- him personally, and has only recently, to wit: on or about
January 15, 1923, addressed a communication to the Attorney
General of the United States concerning petitioner, an

exact copy of which follows:
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It will be noticed that this petition addressed
directly to the Attorney Genersl makes specific reference
to the charge upon which the defendant is to be brought
to trial, amnd that the bitter feeling asgainst petitioner
throughout is so evident that comment is unnecessary.

Petitioner does wisgh, however, to call axtentién of
Your Honor to the name of William Pickens, one of the
gigners of the petition, who describes himself as Field
Secretary of the N. A. A. C. r., which is one of the most
responsible offices. mhis man was formerly dean of a
colored school, and 1s peid a high salary by the N. A. A.
C P. e

Attention is also called to Robert w. Bagnall, another
gigner of the petitigm, = who is a Director of Branches of
the N. A. A. C. P.. a regponsible position, a high salaried
offioor, and who, before coming to tho N. A. A. C. P.. wa g
& clergyman.

narry'ﬂ. Pace, another signer of the petition, is also
& Director of'the N. A. A. C. P.

John E. Nail,'anéthér éigﬁer of the petition, is also
& Director of the N. A, A. C. P., and brother-in-law of
James Weldon Johnson, the Executivo Secretery of the N. A.
A. C. P.

v The Crisis, a monthly magazine, the official organ
of the N. A. A. C. P., is an open opponent of the petitioner
end hie work in which have frequently appeered articles
written by w. E. B. DuBois, Editor-in Chief of the Crisis
and Director of Research in the N. A. A. c. P., criticising
him adversely and condemning his work.

The attention of Your Honor is eallod to an article
eppearing in the January, 1921, Crisis, in which W. E. B.
DuBois deals with the Black Star Line, the oorporafioﬁ oﬁt

of whoge business transaetionq the indictment in part grew,



upon which the defendant is to be brought to trisl before
*
Your Honor, an excerpt from which follows:

"§hen it comes to Mr. Garvey's induse-
trisl snd commercial enterprises there is more
ground for doubt and misgiving than in the mat-
ter of his character. First of all, his enter-
prises are incorporated in Delaware, where the
corgoration laws are loose and where no financial
statements are required. 8o far as I can find,
and I have searched with ecare + Barvey has never
publiched a complete gtetement of ,the income and
expenditures of the Negro Improvement Association
or of the Black Stsr Line or of any of his enter-
prises, which really revealed hie financial situa-
tion., A courteous letter of inquiry sent to him
July 22, 1920, asking for such financial data as
he wes willing for the public to know, remains to
this day unacknowledged and unanswered."

In an article appearing in the December, 1920,
Crisie, W. E. B. DuBoig, referring to the petitioner, says:
"He has very serious defects of temperament amd training:
he ig dictatorisl, domineering, inordinately vain and very
suspicious."

The N. A. A. C, P. and ite officere were not con-
tent to attack your petitiomer in their official organ, but
during the month of July, 1922, end the month of Augusty
1922, during a month's session of the Annual Convertion of
the Universal Negro Improvement Associastion, of which pe-
titioner is the president and organizer, public meetings,
advertised in the press and by the distribution of cirecu-
lars, were held each Sundey afternoon, at which the said
William Pickens and the said Robert W. Bagnall spoke, pre=
gidad or took prominent parte; and at which the slogan
was: "Garvey must go, and he's going."

Your Honor, who 1is chosen t0 preside at the said

trial of the petitioner, is & member of and contributor to
the N. A. A. C. P. aforessid; a reader of and subscriber

to the Crisis éfofesaid. Petitioner respectfully submits

thet in his honest belief, Your Honor would be unconscious=

ly swayed to the side of the Government against this pe-



titioner in this trial, for, as a reader of the Crisis, it
is feir to assume thet Your Honor has read the bitter amd
unfavorable criticisme of the petitioner and his work, the
very issues of which will come before Your Honor in this
trisl. Petitioner feels deeply grieved that he should be
tried'before Your Honor as presiding Judge, who has given
financial sapport to the N. A. A. C. P., and thus indi-
rectly assisted them in paying their officers to attack,
hold up to ridicule and undertake to destroy this petitioner
and his work; and who, by subscribing to the Crisis, as-
gigted in the circulation of matter adverse to petitiomer
and his work; all of which involved the very issues which
will be tried in this case.

The said W. E. B; DuBois, the said William Pickens
and the said Robert ﬁ. Bagnall are to this wery day holding
thelr said positions ﬁith the N. A. A. C. 2., eand the at-
tacks referred to are known to the N. A. A. C. P.. end if
the N. A. A. C. P. did not approve of the said attackc upon
this defendant and his work, by its direction the said W.

E. B. DuBois, the said William Pickens and the said Robert
w; Bagnall would have been requested to discontinue these
aftacks.

| In truth, it seems unconaoionable to petitioner
that a member of the N. A. A. C. P. gshould have any voice
in a trial, either as a judge or a jury, in which pe=~
titioner's honor, his liberty are at stake. It is Just
as unseemly to petitioner for a member of tﬁe N. A. A. C. Po
to sit as a trial judge when petitioner is seeking'a taif '
and impartisl trisl, as it would be for a member of the
Universal Negro Improvement Association or the Black Star
Line to sit as a trisl judge when W. E. B. DuBois or some
member of the N. A. A. C. P. would ﬁe friéd on a similar



offense, in which the life of their work, their honor anmd
liberty were at stake,

In any éueséion in which the facts or the law
balanced evenly between the organizations representing
petitioner's work, to which Your Honor does not belong,
lend his influence or assist in any way, and the N. A. A.
C. P., petitioner feels that Your Honor might unconsoioué-
1y l;an to the other side. Petitioner is forced to this
conclusion because it is feasongble to assume that if Your
Honor d4id not approve of the work of the N. A. A. C. P.
that Your Honor's support, influence and affiliétion’woﬁld
be discontinuned, '

The pétitioner is of the opinion that when Your
Honor was designated, if designated, by the Judge making
assignment, the said Judge was not fully advised of all
the facts and circumstances; and if Your Honor wers chosen
at the instance of the United States Attorney, he was aware
at the time of his suggestion, or request, that Your Honor
sit as trisl Judge im this case of Your Honor's affiliation
with the N. A. A. C. P.

It ﬁigﬁt be 6f interest to Your Honor to know
that on Mgy 7th, when this case was called for trial,
Moorefield Storey, a Boston attorney, and one of the high-
est officials of the N. A. A. C. P.. wae Seen in the United
States Attorney's offico in and for this district. May not
the petitioner respectfully inquire of Your Honor, if it
should be that Your Honor were charged with a similar ofe
fense, would Your Honor in these circumstances wish to be
brought to trial before a judge identified, as Your Honor
is, with the subject matter of this case?

Petitioner knows of no instance in which a single

word of opposition has come from & member of the N. A. A.



C. P. of its bitter attacks against defendant and his work.
A11 of the members of the N. A. A. c. P. have apparently
not only acquiesced in, but approved of tho course pur=
sued by it. As Your Honor is a member of the N, A. A. C.
Pey petitiéner must assume that Your Honor knew otithése'
aftacks.

: Petitioner further submits that he can find no
basie for these attacks, except that the N, A. A. C. P.,
which seseks to be recognized as the dominant organization
of the Negro race, and W. E. B. DuBois, one of its or-
ganizers and moving spiritl; uﬂo aspires to be recognized
as a leader of the Negro race, are envious of the instie
tutions of which the petitioner was organizer, and of the
petitioner because he and his institutions ars recognized
as a worldwide force among Negroes, alongside of which the
N. A. A. C. P. and w. E. B. DuBois sink into insignificance.

Petitioner balieves that the N. A. A. C. P. in its'

attacks upon him is actuated by cruel, corrupt and sinister
motives.

' Petitoner is not seeking to impute to Your Honor
any intention to do him an injustice, but if am injustice
is in point of fact done, the intention is not material,
Petitioner is not seeking to choose a judge to try his '
case, but feels thaet a judge should sit who would not be a
supporter to petitioner as a defendant, nor to any igsti-
tution or influence which would assist the prosecution
egainst him,

Petitioner respectfully submits that in his honest

belief Your Honor is disqualified, both in law and in pro-
priety from sitting as trial Judge in the above-santitled



caseés This application was not msde 10 days prior to the
term-because petitioner did not know who was designated as

Judge.
' WHEREFORE, petitioner prays that Your Honor
will retire as the trial Judge in this case,

/%;&%/8/
Sworn to and subseribed | S— ,// \//
before me this /ﬂﬁ day

72Ny A
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